Das et al v. WM(

United States District Court
For the Northern District of California

© 00 N o o b~ w N Pk

N N N N N DN DN NN R R R R R R R B R R
0o N o 0N WN P O ©OW 0o N O o WwWN B O
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
SAN JOSE DIVISION
MADHVAMUNI K. DAS, GEETHA M. DAS, CaseNo.: 10-CV-00650LHK

ORDERGRANTING MOTION TO
DISMISS

Plaintiffs,
V.

)
)
)
)
WMC MORTGAGE CORP.; AMERICAN )
MORTGAGE NETWORK; THE CIT GROUP;)
FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE )
COMPANY; MERS; OLD REPUBLIC )
DEFAULT MANAGEMENT SERVICES; )
BONAFIDE FINANCIAL; WESTWOOD )
ASSOCIATES; CENTRAL MORTGAGE )
COMPANY; AMERICA’S SERVICING )
COMPANY; GMAC MORTGAGE CORP.; )
DOES 1100. )

)

)

)

Defendart.

Presently before the Court is Defendant American Mortgage NetwOAdsNet”) motion

to dismiss Plaintiffssecond amended complaint, ECF No. 12éter consideing the parties’

briefingand oral argumentthe Court GRANTS AriNets motion for the reasons explained below.

|. Factual Background
A. Judicial Notice
A court may take judicial notice of facts that are not subject to reasonahliéedisyl are
either:(1) generdly known within the territorial jurisdiction of the trial court; (&) capable of
accurate and ready determination by resort to resources whose accuracy eaeasoihably
guestioned.Fed.R. Evid. 201(b). The Court may consider, under the incorpordity reference

doctrine, documents that are connected to the loan transaction at issue, ah famiwt makes a

request for judicial notice. ECF No. 117. For purposes of ruling on a motion to dismiss undef

Rule 12(b)(6), the pleadings are deemed t¢tuste “documents whose contents are alleged in a

complaint and whose authenticity no party questions, but which are not physicalgattat¢he
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pleading” See Parrino v. FHP, Inc146 F.3d 699, 706 (9th Cir. 1998). The Court may also tak
judicial naice of matters of public recordsee Lee v. City of Los Angel250 F.3d 668, 688 (9th
Cir. 2001).

Defendant requests that the Court take judicial natic€l) Plaintiffs’ Deed of Trust
executed on September 13, 2006, and recorded with the Santa Clara County Recordeds Offi
September 21, 2006; (2) a Notice of Default regarding Plaintiffs’ loan, recortletheiSanta
Clara County Recorder’s Office on May 22, 2009; and (3) Notice of Trustee Sale rgdhedin
subject property, recorded with the Santa Clara County Recorder’s Office omblve5, 2009.
SeeRequest for Judicial Notice (“RIN'EECF No. 117 Exs. A-C.

The Court concludes that the public documents submitted by Defendant are not subjeq
reasonable dispute and are proper subjegtsiafial notice See Karimi v. GMAC MortgNo.
11-CV-00926-LHK, 2011 WL 3360017, at *1 (N.Bal. Aug.2, 2011) (taking judicial notice of
nearly identical documentspccordingly, the Court GRANT8mNet's request for judicial
notice.

A. Facts

On a motiorto dismiss, “all allegations of material fact are taken as true and construed
the light most favorable to [Plaintiffs].Facebook, Inc. v. MaxBounty, In274 F.R.D. 279, 282
(N.D. Cal. 2011) (citingcahill v. Liberty Mutual Ins. Co80 F.3d 336, 337—-38 (9th Cir. 1996)).

Plaintiffs allegethat, since 2006heyhave at all timesesidel at 5978 Allen Avenue, San

Jose, California (“the Subject Property”). SAC fRaintiffs allege they are immigrants and

minorities. SAC | 8.They further allegehtat AmNet is an authorized mortgage lender. SAC { 9.

Plaintiffs claim thaton or abouSeptembe2006all Defendants induced Plaintiffs to take
out a home loan in the amount of $945,000.00, securedibst deed of trust recorded agaitist
subject poperty(the “Loan”), despite knowing that Plaintiffs had limited income and did not
gualify for the Loan.SeeSAC 11 1924, 27. As of May 21, 2009, Plaintiffs owed $24,740.16 fo

“Installment of Principal and Interest plus impounds and/or advanceb Wwhoame due on
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2/1/2009 plus late charges, and all subsequent installments of principal, interest, balloentpa
plus impounds and/or advances and late charges that become payable.” RIN EX. B.

Plaintiffs allege that AmNet represented to Plaintff006, wherPlaintiffs sought to
refinance loans secured against the Subject PropleatyAmNet would provide Plaintiffs with an
affordable loan.SAC { 23. Plaintiffs allege that AmNet represented to Plaintiffshiegtwould
not obtain better ratesnywhere and that Plaintiffs relied on these promises. SAC 1 28r26r
about September 2006, Plaintiffs executed a promissory note, a deed of trust, andattler re
documents to obtain the Loan. SAC { 24. The deed of trust identified AmNet and Defendant
as the lendat Id. Plaintiffs allege that the Loan was subject to a finance charge that wasyinitig
payable to AmNet and CIT. SAC 1 29. Plaintiffs allege that they did not reckilie ekquired
documents and disclosures under TILA. SAC 9 BRintiffs admitted at the hearing that they did
not read the loan documents when they signed them, and that the first time theyd ¢veeloan
documents was in November 2009.

Plaintiffs allege that sometinadter closing the logtAmNet ard CIT substituted Old
Republic as the trustee on the deed in place and instead of AmdENT. SeeSAC { 33.

Plaintiffs allege that all Defendants initiated a wrongful-naticial foreclosure by filing a
Notice of Defaulton May 21, 2009 SAC 1 35, 39 RJN Ex. B Plaintiffs allege that all
Defendants “are jointly and severally responsible for the acts of the obematise each
Defendant “was the agent of the other.” SAC  40. They further allege that efectd@nt knew
the other Defendants “watdd commit wrongful acts against Plaintiffs” and “gave substantial
assistance or encouragement to the other Defendant to commit wrongful acss Rigantiffs.”
Id.

Il. Procedural Background

The present motion seeks to dismiss the folloveigipteerclaims currently being asserted
against AmNet: (1) violation of TILA, 15 U.S.C. § 1601; (2) violation of California Residentia
Mortgage Lending Act (“CRMLA”"), Cal. Fin. Code § 50@e1i.seq.(3) violation of Cal. Civ. Code

! Plaintiffs admitted at the hearing on the motion that they have not made any pasiments
February 2009.
3
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§ 1916.7(10); (4) violation of the Equal Credit Opportunity Act (“ECOA”), 15 U.S.C. § 1691; (5
violation of the California Unfair Competition Law (“UCL"), Cal. Bus. & Probde § 17200; (6)
rescission under Cal. Civ. Code 8§ 1689(b); (7) violation of the Real Estate Setthnaetides Act
(“RESPA"), 12 U.S.C. § 2601; (8) unconscionability under Cal. Civ. Code 1670.5(a), 1770(s);
breach of contract; (10) breach of implied covenant of good faith and fair deaygntentional
infliction of emotional distress; (13) intentional misremstion; (14) fraudulent concealment;
(15) negligent misrepresentation; (18) negligence; (19) breach of fiducigryaddi(21) quiet
title.>

Plaintiffs filed the original complaint in this action on February 16, 2010. The drigina
complaintcontained22 claims, includin@ll of the claims at issue in the instant motion and a few
others not at issue here.

On March 12, 201Mefendants WMC and First American Titlessurance Company filed
separate motions to dismiss. ECF Nos. 7, 10. On March 25, Réfghdants Central Mortgage
Company(“*CMC”) and MERS filed a joint motion to dismiss. ECF No. 11. On March 29, 201

—

9)

:)’

Defendant Bonafide Financial also filed a motion to dismiss. ECF No. 14. On April 9, 2010, the

parties stipulated to dismissing all claims against Wells E&go, dba America’s Servicing
Company. ECF No. 18. On April 20, 2010, Defendant Old Republic Default Management
Services joined all of the aboweotions to dismiss the original complairEach of the motions to
dismissattackedhe sufficiency of the pleadings and argued that Plaintiffs’ claims were time
barred by the applicable statutes of limitatio@VC and MERS’s joint motion also argued that
Plaintiffs had not alleged equitable tolling. ECF No. 11, at 6-7.

On April 30, 2010, Plaintiffs filed a First Amended ComplaiEAC”) in lieu of
responding to the above motions to dismiss. ECF No. 32. The FAC corttaerdgthree
claims, includinghe sixteerclaims at issue in the instant motion aedennot at issue here.
Plaintiffs added, among other things, allegations that equitable tolling applied to sdmeé of t
claims including those under TILA, CRMLA, RESPA, and tlredch ofimpliedcovenant of good
faith and &ir dealing FAC Y 60 (TILA), 66 (CRMLA), 100 (RESPA), 123 ¢ach ofimplied

%2 The numbering of the claims tracks the numbering in the SAC.
4
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covenant of gooddiith andfair dealing) Plaintiffs then opposed Defendants’ motions, arguing th
the original complaint was mooted by the fgiof the FAC. ECF Nos. 35-39.

On May 12, 2010, CMC and MERS filed a joint motion tendiiss the FACagain arguing
that each of the claims in the FAC either did not apply to CMC and MERS, failedet@ stiaim,
or were otherwise timbarred ECF No. 41. On May 18, 201Defendantirst American Title
Insurance Comparfyled a reply in spport of its motion to dismiss the original complaint arguing
thatthe Plaintiffs had filed their FAC beyond the deadline without leave from the toatrthe
original complaint was therefore the operative complaint, and conseg&esthAmerican Titlés
motion to dismiss the original complaint was not moot. ECF No. 48.

On June 8, 2010, Plaintiffs responded to CMC and MER&1t motion to dismiss the
FAC, arguing, among other things, that CMC and MERS had failed to consider thaalottri
equitable tolling. ECF No. 54, at 3-4, 15-16. On June 8, Zlatiffs filed an opposition.ECF
No. 54. On June 24, 2010MC and MERSiled a reply ECF No. 58.

On October 29, 2010, Magistrate Judge Trumhih# judge assigned to the caggnted in
patt and denied in pa@MC and MERS’anotion to dismiss the FACECF No. 80.0f the claims
at issue here, Magistrate Judge Trumbull dismissed, with leave to dataintiffs’ claims for
quiet titleand deniedheir claims for intentional infliction of emotional distressd negligence.

On November 29, 2010, Plaintiffs filed a Second Amended Complaint (“SAC”), which i
the operative complaint hefeECF No. 82. The SA@lleged twentyone claims. On December
13, 2010, CMC and MERS filed a motiondismiss theSAC’s twentieth and twentyist claims,
for wrongful foreclosure and quiet title, respectively. ECF No.@6ly the quiet title claim is at
issue here.

On December 6, 2010, the case was reassigned to Magistrate Judge Grewalrtbeall f

proceedings. ECF No. 84. On June 9, 2011, the case was reassigned to the undersigned with

Magistrate Judg&rewal’'s Report and Recommendation that CMC and MERS’s motion to disn

% The Cournotes that Plaintiffs were represented by coufneat thefiling of the first complaint
on February 16, 2010, until October 14, 2011, when the Court granted Plaottiffsel leave to
withdraw. ECF No. 125. Thus, Plaintiffs were represented by cbanide time the SAC was
filed on November 29, 2010. Accordingly, the Caatutinizeghe SACunder the standard of a
represented, rather thampeo se litigant.
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be granted. ECF No. 107, 109. On July 18, 2011, the Court adopted MadistigeeGrewal’s
Report and Recommendation that the twentieth and twestyelaimsin the SAC be dismissed.
ECF No. 115. The Court gave Plaintiffs until August 8, 2011, to amend the complaint or face
dismissal of these claimvgith prejudice. Plaintiffgailed to amend the SAC by the deadline or
anytime thereafter. Accordingly the twentieth and twdingg claimsin the SACare DISMISSED
WITH PREJUDICE

On August 17, 2011, AmNet filed the instant motion. ECF No. 116. On October 20, 2
Plaintiffs filed their opposition. ECF No. 127. AmNet filed its reply on October 25, 2011. ECH
No. 129.

Following the dismissal of the twentieth and twefitgt claims, he followingsixteen
claims remain against AmNet: (1) violation of TILA, 15 U.S.C. § 1601, (2) violation afo@ah
Residential Mortgage Lending ACCRMLA”) , Cal. Fin. Code 8 5004t seq.(3) violation of Cal.
Civ. Code § 1916.7(10); (4) violation of the Equal Credit Opportunity &AL OA"), 15 U.S.C. §
1691; (5) violation of the California Unfair Competition Law (“UCL”), Cal. Bus. & Code §
17200; (6) rescission under Cal. Civ. Code § 1689(b); (7) violation of the Real Estate S#ttlem
PracticeAct (“RESPA”), 12 U.S.C. § 2601; (8) unconscionability under Cal. Civ. Code 1670.5
1770(s); (9) breach of contract; (10) breach of implied covenant of good faith and liaig;dd2)
intentional infliction of emotional distress; (13) intentional misrepresemtafi4) fraudulent
concealment; (15) negligent misrepresentation; (18) negligence; and (19) Hréduobiary duty’

[I1. Legal Standard

A motion to dismiss for failure to state a claim under Rule 12(b)(6) tests the legal
sufficiency of a complaintNavarro v. Block250 F.3d 729, 732 (9th Cir. 2001). In considering
whether the comaplint is sufficient to state a claim, the Court must accept as true all of the facty
allegations contained in the complaiftshcroft v. Igbagl129 S.Ct. 1937, 1949 (2009). However,
the Court need not accept as true “allegations that contradict npatipesly subject to judicial
notice or by exhibit” or “allegations that are merely conclusory, unwarrantecttiens of fact, or

unreasonable inferenceslii re Gilead Scis. Secs. Litjp36 F.3d 1049, 1055 (9th Cir. 2008).

* The numbering of the claims track®e numbering in the SAC.
6
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While a complaint need noliege detailed factual allegations, it “must contain sufficient factual
matter, accepted as true, to ‘state a claim to relief that is plausible on it% fiabal, 129 S. Ct. at
1949 (quotingBell Atl. Corp. v. Twomb|y550 U.S. 544, 570 (2007)). A ofais facially plausible
when it “allows the court to draw the reasonable inference that the defendarieiflidhe
misconduct alleged.’ld. at 1949.

As the Ninth Circuit has stated, “a claim may be dismissed under Rule 12(b)(6) on the
ground thatt is barred by the applicable statute of limitations only when the running afatioées
is apparent on the face of the complaint. A complaint cannot be dismissed unless itlzgmeats
doubt that the plaintiff can prove no set of facts that woulbésh the timeliness of the claim.”
Von Saher v. Norton Simon Museum of Art at Pasgde9faF.3d 954, 969 (9th Cir. 2010kgrt.
denied 131 S. Ct. 3055 (2011) (internal citations and quotations omitted).

Claims sounding in fraud are subject to the heightened pleading requirements af Fede
Rule of Civil Procedure 9(b). A plaintiff alleging fraud “must state with padrdy the
circumstances constituting fraud.” Fed. R. Civ. P. 9(b). To satisfy this standarigghé@ns
must be “specific esugh to give defendants notice of the particular misconduct which is allege
constitute the fraud charged so that they can defend against the charge and noy jhsit deey
have done anything wrong3emegen v. Weidneét80 F.2d 727, 731 (9th Cir. 1985).
Accordingly, claims sounding in fraud must allege “an account of the timeg,hnd specific
content of the false representations as well as the identities of the patftiesrisrepresentations.”
Swartz v. KPMG LLP476 F.3d 756, 764 (9th Cir. 2007).

If a court grants a motion to dismiss, leave to amend should be granted unless the ples
could not possibly be cured by the allegation of other fdatpez v. Smiti203 F.3d 1122, 1130
(9th Cir. 2000).However,repeated failure to cure deficiencies in a complaint is reason enough
deny leave to amendsee Foman v. Davi871 U.S. 178, 182 (196Xee also Abagninin v.
AMVAC Chem. Corp545 F.3d 733, 742 (9th Cir. 2008) (same)

V. Analysis
AmNet argues that all of Plaiffs’ claims against it should be dismissed with prejudice

becausdlaintiffs fail to plead fraud with the requisite particularity under Rule 9 oFéukeral
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Rules of Civil Procedureg number of claims are fatally timearred and Plaintiffs fail to
otherwise state a claim upon which relief can be granted. The Court analyzes eactiainhth
against AmNet in the order in which they appear in the SAC.
A. First Claim: TILA

TILA requires, among other things, disclosure of finance charges and the anneatgmc
rate. Seel5 U.S.C. § 1638(a); 12 C.F.R. 8§ 226(1Begulation Z") Lenders must provide
borrowers with clear and accurate disclosures, including two copies of a notiaglufta
rescission. 15 U.S.C. § 1635. Violation of TILA provides besrs with two potential forms of
relief: rescission and monetary damag8eel5 U.S.C. 88 1635, 1640t a lender fails to disclose
material information required by TILA, a borrower has a right to rescitidnithree years of
consummation of the loarSee King v. California784 F.2d 910, 913 (9th Cir. 1986 addition,
a borrower has a right to monetary damages within one year of consummation of tHd.laan.
915. However, “the doctrine of equitable tolling may, in the appropriate circumstauspend
the limitations period until the borrower discovers or had reasonable opportunityaeedigte
fraud or nondisclosures that form the basis of the TILA acti@e& idat 915.

Plaintiffs havealleged or attempted to allege numerous violatiohTILA and Regulation
Z. Plaintiffs state that “[i]n the course of soliciting and executing the Subpect and/or
extending other consumer credit, said Creditors in numerous instances have \helated t
requirements of TILA and Regulation Z.” SAC ¥.5Plaintiffs state that “[s]aid violations include
but are not limited to the following” and then list violations of various requirements under
Regulation Z.1d. Thus,Plaintiffs provide little more than conclusory statements that these
sections wereiglated. These conclusory allegations a@ enough to support Plaintiff§1LA
claim.

For the vast majority of the allegations under the TILA claim, “Plaintiffs dodsmtify
which Defendant allegedly violated TILASY failing to disclose which required documeniBang
v. Cal.Reconveyance Cdl0-CV-03333-LHK, 2010 WL 5387837, at *5 (N.D. Cal. Dec. 22,

2010). The Complaint must “meet some minimum threshold in providing a defendant with no

CaseNo.: 10CV-00650LHK
ORDERGRANTING MOTION TO DISMISS

lice




United States District Court
For the Northern District of California

© 00 N o o b~ w N Pk

N N N N N DN DN NN R R R R R R R B R R
0o N o 0N WN P O ©OW 0o N O o WwWN B O

of what it is that it allegedly did wrong.Brazil v. United States Dept. of Na¥6 F.3d 193, 199
(9th Cir. 1995). Plaintiffs have not met that minimum threshold here.

Plaintiffs specifically allege thédft]here is no evidence that Plaintiff received Lenders’
early disclosures.” SAC { 54. Plaintiffs akltege thatBroker and Lenders failed to provide to
Plaintiffs copies of their real property appraisal at or before the cldbeiofadjustable rate home
mortgage loan.” SAC § 56. Plaintifigrther allege that Defendants “extended credit to Plasntiff
without regard for their ability to pay and may have falsified relevant incohepraisal
documents to ensure the approval of the subject loans.” SACHe8. if these factual
allegations were sufficient to state a claim under TlaBy such clainwould be timebarred by
the applicable statute of limitations.

Plaintiffs claim thattheyareentitled to both rescission of the loan as well as damages bs
on these TILA violations. @ims for rescission under TILA expire “three years after the date o
consummation of the transaction or upon the sale of the property, whichever octurs fir45
U.S.C. § 1635(f).The threeyear period is not subject to equitable tollirfgee Beach v. Ocwen
Fed. Bank523 U.S. 410, 412 (1998) (holding that “8 1635(f) completely extinguishes the right
rescission at the end of they@ar period.”). Because the loan documents indicate that the loan
was signed in Septemb2006, and Plaintiffslid not file thiscaseuntil February2010, over three
years later, its apparent from the face of the SA@t Plaintiffs claims for rescission under TILA
are timebarred. Accordingly, Plaintiffs’ TILA claim for rescission BISMISSED WITH
PREJUDICE.

Damages claims under TILA have a grear statute of limitations thatins from the date
the loan documents are signed. 15 U.S.C. § 1640(e). Therefore, absent tolling, PIBEIibAfT
damages claims expired 8eptember 2007. Equitable tolling of TILA damages claims can exte
the one-year limitations period, but sucHihg is only available if “despite all due diligence, a
plaintiff is unable to obtain vital information bearing on the existence of his.tlganta Maria
v. Pac. Bell 202 F.3d 1170, 1178 (9th Cir. 20006yerruled on different grounds by Socop-
Gonzalez v. IN®72 F.3d 1176, 119@th Cir.2000). Plaintiffs havealleged that the statute of

limitations should be tolled because they have pled fraud and that the “statute of limitations fd
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TILA claim is subject to equitable tolling upon the pleading of fraG®C {59. However,
Plaintiffs havenot alleged facts sufficient to establish ttrety acted with diligence to discover the|
basis oftheir TILA claims, which should have been apparent at the time the loan documents W
signed. Nor have they explained how the alleged fraud prevented them from discdwarthg t
required disclosures under TILA had not been made. Accordingly, the Court finds thiff$la
have not alleged facts sufficient to supgbsdir TILA damages claim.

Plaintiffs could not possibly amend their pleadings to show that equitable tollingsappli
becausethe failure to disclose the appraisal would be apparent with due diligencdiatdtibe
loan was executedPlaintiffs admitted at the hearing that they did not th@doan documents
until after they receivethe notice of trustee’s sale on November 25, 2609¢ than three years
after signinghe loan documents. Furthermore, Plaintiffs have had three opportunities, while
represented by counsel, to adequately plead equitable tolitgough neither Magisate Judge
Trumbullnor Magistrate Judge Grewaached the issue of equitable tolling, CMC and MERS'’s
motion to dismissaised it on March 25, 2010, ECF No. 11, a,&nd, in apparent response,
Plaintiffs, through their counsel, added their insufficient equitable tolling allegations when they
filed their FAC on April 30, 2010. FAC 11 60, 66, 100, 1P&intiffs’ SAC, also filed by
Plaintiffs’ counselalsofails to allege equitable tollingAs the Supreme Court has held, repeated
failure to cure deficiencies in a complaint is reason enough to deny leave to éeenfoman v.
Davis, 371 U.S. 178, 182 (1962%ee also Abagninin v. AMVAC Chem. CpBal5 F.3d 733, 742
(9th Cir. 2008) (same)Accordingly, Plaintiffs’ TILA claim for damages is DISMISSBUITH
PREJUDICE.

B. Second Claim: Violation of Cal. Fin. Code § 50000, et seq.

AmNet argues that Plaiffiis’ second claim under the California Residential Mortgage
Lending Act(*CRMLA”) , Cal. Fin. Code 8§ 500@t seq. is deficiently vague and barred by the
statute of limitations.

Plaintiffs allege that “Lenders and Broker failed to execute and providescofa Written
Loan Brokerage Agreement to Plaintiffs in violation of California Finar€@de Section 50000 et

seq.” SAC 1 64. Plaintiffs further chaithat the statute of limitations for this claim is subject to
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equitable tolling “upon the pleading of fraud,” which Plaintgfead in claims fifteen through
seventeen. SAC { 65.

The Court agrees with AmNet that Plaintiffs’ second claim is insufficient to tneet
Federal Rulsof Civil Procedure’s minimal notice pleading requiremdrg@sause the claim does
not point to which provision of the California Residential Mortgage Lending Act Aral\sgedly
violated nor does the claim specify which Defenddaitéd to execute and provide copies of a
Written Loan Brokerage Agreement.” Thuse tComplaindoes not meet theninimum threshold
in providing a defendant with notice of what it is that it allegedly did wrolgdzil v. United
States Dept. of Nayg6 F.3d 193, 199 (9th Cir. 1995yague allegations containing mere labels
and conclusions are insufficient to survive a motion to disn8ege Twomb|y550 U.S. at 555.

Moreover, even if Plaintiffs’ conclusory allegations were sufficiergtabe a clamn, they
would be time-barred. This claim would be subject eitharttreeyear statute of limitatias
under Cal Code. Civ. Proc. 8§ 338(a) for liability created by statute, or yeanestatute of
limitations for a statutory penalty. Even under theglemstatute of limitations, Plaintiffsecond
claim would be timébarred. Plaintiffs havenot alleged facts sufficient to establish tthetyacted
with diligence to discover the basistbeir CRMLA claim, which should have been apparent at tf
time theloan documents were signed. Nor have they explained how the alleged fraud preven
them from discovering that AmNet “failed to execute and provide copies of a&l\iibian
Brokerage Agreement.”

Accordingly, Plaintiffs CRMLA claim is DISMISSEDagainstAmNet. This dismissal is
with prejudice for the same reason Plaintiffs’ TIckim was dismissed with prejudice.

C. Third Claim: Violation of Cal. Civ. Code § 1916.7

California Civil Code section 1916.7 governs certain lending practices withdregar
adustablerate mortgages made pursuant to the section. Cal. Civ. Code § 1916r@\ajes that
“an applicant for a loan originated pursuant to the provisions of this section must be giken, at
time he or she requests gupécation, a disclosure notice . . ..” Section 1916.7(c) sets forth a

number of requirements for the notice. Plaintiffs allege that “Broker anders’ violatedhis

® Plaintiffs erroneously label this section 1916.7(10)(c).
11
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provision“by failing to provide Plaintiffs with a disclosure regarding adjustablematdgages
SAC 1 69 Secibn 1916.7(b)(5) provides that[c]hanges in the rate of interest on the loan shall
reflect the movement, in reference to the date of the original loan, of a pdhogiddished index
selected by the lender . .” Plaintiffs claim that “Broker and Lenders” violated this provision by
“restrict[ing] the downward adjustment of Plaintiffs’ adjustatdée mortgage loan regardless of
the downward movement of the index.” SAC  72. Finally, § 1916.7(g)(8Yyides that “[the
borrower is permitted to prepay the loan in whole or in part without a prepaymerg ahairgy
time. ...” Plaintiffs claim that “Broker and Lenders violated this provision by tajahg] a
prepayment penalty in Plaintiffs’ Adjustable Rate L6aSAC § 75.

Plaintiffs’ claimsunder § 1916.7 fail for the following reasorfarst, Section 1916.7
applies only to mortgage loans made pursuant to it. Cal. Civ.Code § 191®I&Ain}iffs havenot
alleged facts showing that section 1916.7 applie¢dewo loan. Cf. Brittain v. Ind/Mac Bank, FSB
09-CV-2953-SC, 2009 WL 2997394, at *3 (N.D. Cal. Sept. 16, 2009). Second, even if 1916.7
applied, Plaintiffs do not specify which Defendant violated which provision of 1916.7.

California Civil Code § 1916.dppears to be subject to agl year limitations period
pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure § 338(@)liability created by statuteSee
Manantan v. Nat'City Mortg., 11-CV-00216-CW, 2011 WL 3267706, at *3 (N.D. Cal. July 28,
2011). Plaintiffs’ claimsunder § 1916.&ccrued at the timinatthe loan documents were signed
and would therefore be time-barred as of September 2009. Plaintiff did not file surelmtibry
2010. Thus, Plaintiffs’ claims under § 1916.7 are time-barred.

Accordingly,Plaintiffs’ claim under Cal. @ Code § 1916.dgainstAmNetis
DISMISSED. Plaintiffs have not allegedny grounds for equitable tolling of this claidespite
having three opportunities to do so, nor have they oppasddets argument that this claim is
time-barred. Moreover, Plaintiffs could not possibly amend their pleadings to show thabkxjui
tolling appliesto their claims arising from the alleg&lureto disclose under § 1916.7(c) and the

inclusion of a prepayment penalty clausaimralleged violation of 8 1916.7(b)(8), as these claims

® Plaintiffs erroneously label this section 1916.7(10)(c)(Il).
’ Plaintiffs erroneously label this section 1916.7(a)(8).
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would be apparent Wi due diligence ahe timethatthe loan was executednd Plaintiffs have
admitted their lack of diligenceThus,dismissal is without leave to amend as &sthprovisions.

However, Plaintiffs may amend their claagainst AmNetinder 8§ 1916.7(b)(5). This
claim is premised on AmNet's alleged failure to adjust Plaintiffs’ interest rasediegs of the
downward movement of the index. Thus, it is not apparent from the face of the SA@sthat t
claim istime-barredbecause the failure to adjust may hageurredafter the loan wsexecuted.
In any amended complaint, Plaintiffs must, in addition to curing the above defesallege facts
showing thathis claimis timely.

D. Fourth Claim: Equal Credit Opportunity Act

The Equal Credit Opportunity Act (‘ECOA”), 15 U.S.C. § 166flseq, prohibits
discrimination against an applicant for credit based on race, color, religiconalatirigin, sex or
marital status, or ageSeel5 U.S.C. § 1691(a)ECOA creates a private right of action for actual,
compensatory and punitive damages, equitable relief, and recovery of costs, and prowades a t
year statute of limitations from the daif the violation.ld. § 1691e(a)).

To state a discrimination claim under ECOA, Plaintiffs must show thathey were

members of a protected clag®) they applied for and were qualified for the loan at issue; (3) the
loan was rejected despitéaitiffs’ qualifications; and4) a creditor continued to approve loans far
similarly situated applicants or treated members not in the protected class vooablia See
Shiplet v. Venema®20 F. Supp. 2d 1203, 1232 (D. Mont. 2009).

Even construinghe pleadings in their favor, Plaintiffs have not alleged sufficient facts td
establish national origin discriminatiamder ECOA.Plaintiffs allege that “Lenders and Broker”
violated ECOA by “failing to make Plaintiffs’ credit scores available to theensure that they
are offered on the same terms of credit issuance that other borrowers of equatitizracre
entitled to.” SAC § 78. They further allege that “as a result of Broker amtek® failure to
disclose [Plaintiffs’ credit scores], Rdffs were assessed higher credit charges than similarly
situated borrowers each time Plaintiffs made a loan payment” and thus “suffetediing
discriminatory practices.” SAC | 79. Although Plaintiffs do allege that treeyranigrants, SAC

1 8, Plaintiffs have not alleged that AmNet rejected an application for a loan fdr Riaintiffs
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were qualified- a requirement to state a discrimination claim under ECD&the contrary,
Plaintiffs admit they “did not qualify for the loan” thidtey actuallyreceived. SAC § 271t is
thereforeunlikely that amendment could cure theficiency SeeGlover v. Fremont Inv. & Loan
09-CV-03922-JCS, 2009 WL 5114001, at *10 (N.D. Cal. Dec. 18, 2@d9)g Hafiz v.
Greenpoint Mortg. Funding/VL 2137393 * 4 .D. Cal., July 16, 2009) (Alsup, J.)
Accordingly, Plaintiffs’ ECOA claim against AmNet DISMISSEDWITH PREJUDICE
E. Fifth Claim: Violation of the UCL

AmNet argues that Plaintiffs’ UCL claim under Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200 is
conclusory and merites. AmNet argues that PlaintiffdCL claim, whichcentes around
AmNet's verification of Plaintiffs’ income and approving Plaintiffs fdoan they could not
afford, cannot state a claim under the UCL because this conduct is lawful and consequently n
unfair. Moreover, AmNet argues that the relief Plaintiffs seelctual and punitive damages
cannot be recovered under the UCL, which limits relief to equitable relief.

Plaintiffs allegethat “Broker and Lenders” committed “unlawful, unfair and/or fraudulent
business practices . . . by engaging in unlawful, unfair, and fraudulent businesepra&AC
82. Plaintiffs allege these unlawful, unfair, and fraudulent business practiteteibat are not
limited to “predatory lending practices.” SA@E. Plaintiffs list 28 practices in conclusory form
without specifying which Defendants committed which alleged predatactige. SeeSAC 1
82(a)-(bb). Plaintiffs also allege that “Broker and Lenders’ practice” violate “TILA S&ch26.34
by failing to carefully consider consumers [stet] ability and by failing tkemtlhe appropriate
disclosures under TILA and the Real Estate Settlement PracticesSH¥ot 1 83.

“The UCL prohibits unfair competition, which it broadly defines as including any dgualaw
unfair or fraudulent business act or practice and unfair, deceptive, untrue or mgsleadi
advertising.” Kearns v. Ford Motor Co567 F.3d 1120, 1127 (9th Cir. 2009) (quoting Cal. Bus.
Prof.Code § 17200)‘Each prong of the UCL is a separate arstidct theory of liability. . . 7 1d.
(citing South Bay Chevrolet GMAC, 72 Cal. App. 4th 861 (1999)).

Presumably, Plainti#fintend to state a claim under the “unlawful” prong of the UCL bas{

on the alleged TILA and RESPA violationSeeSAC 11 82fn), (t), (aa), (bb), 183 (alleging failure
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to disclose).Plaintiffs cannot state a claim for a UCL violation based on violations of TILA and
RESPA for the same reasons that Plaisitiihderlying TILA and RESPA claims amevalid.
Plaintiffs have not provided sufficient factual allegations to sugheit TILA or RESPAclaims,
and it appears that these claims are #iraged. See Silvas v. E*Trade Mortg. Corpl4 F.3d
1001, 1007 n. 3 (9th Cir. 2008) (holding that plaintiffs may not extend the TILA statute of
limitations by pleading a UCL claim based on a tibagred TILA claim).

To the extent that Plaintiffs plead their UCL claim under‘tn&air’ prong, the Court finds
that practices a through k, n through o, g though s, u, w, aethte to AmNes alleged failurgo
properlyverify Plaintiffs’ income and approving Plaintiffs for a loan they could not afford.
Although AmNet cite?erlas v. GMAC Mortg.LLC, 187 Cal. App. 4th 429, 436 (Cal. Ct. App.
2010),a California Court of Appealsase baston fraudulent misrepresentation, rather thathen

UCL, the Court finds the California court’s reasoning instrudtiees

A lender owes no duty of care to the borrowers in approving their lddaender is
under no duty to determine the borrotgeallity to repay the loan.The lenders
efforts to determine the creditworthiness and ability to repay by a berrame for
the lend€s protection, not the borrowes’

Thus, the Court finds that theakegedpractices are insufficient to state a claindenthe unfair
prong. See Kurek v. Ans. Wholesale Lended0-CV-2155-BZ, 2011 WL 3240482, at (8I.D.
Cal. July 28, 2011(citing Perlasfor proposition that “lenders do not owe borrowers a duty of care
during the loan qualification process becauseanisrms length transactidrand finding that
similar practices did not violate unfair prong of the UCL)

The remaining practices fair no betterder the unfair pronigecause Plaintiffdo not
allegethat theysufferedanyinjury in fact and have lost money or property as a ressitequired
for standing under the UCL. Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17204.

To the extent Plaintiffs allege a violation of thieudulent” prong of the UCL, Plaintiffs’
allegationsdo not satisfy the heightened pleading requirements of Rule Sé& Marolda v.
Symantec Corp672 F. Supp. 2d 992, 1004 (N.©al. 2009) (“While fraud is not a necessary
element of a successful UCL claim, when fraud is alleged, the heightened plstaditiard of

Rule 9(b) applies.”) (citinglearns v. Ford Motor Co567 F.3d 1120, 1125 (9th Cir. 2009)).
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Under Rule 9(b), claims sounding in fraud must allege “an account of the time, placeeaifid s
content of the false representations as well as the identities of the partesiigrépreentations.”
Swartz v. KPMG LLP476 F.3d 756, 764 (9th Cir. 2007)he SAC contains only general
allegations thatBroker and Lenders” engaged in certain “predatory lending practices.” SRC
Plaintiffs do not state wheamy alleged misrepresentats weranade nor do they identify, even
by title or description, the person or persons who made the representations, lethédbne
Defendant is charged with what miscondusecause these claims fail to allege “the who, what,
when, where, and how of the misconduct chargedss v. Cibaseigy Corp. USA317 F.3d 1097,
1106 (9th Cir.2003) (quotation marks and citation omitted), they do not satisfy the heightened
particularity requirement of Rule 9(b) and must be dismissed.

Accordingly, Plaintiffs’ UCL claims against AmNetreDISMISSED. To the extent
Plaintiffs’ unlawful prong claims are based wnlations of RESPA and TILA, these claims are
DISMISSED WITH PREJUDICHor the reasons set forth in sections IV(A) and IV(F) of this
Order To the extent Plaintiffs’ UCL claims relate to AmNet’s alleged failure to phpperify
Plaintiffs’ income and approving Plaintiffs for a loan they could not afford, ttlages are
DISMISSED WITH PREJUDICBecause amendment would be futile given that this conduct
cannot form the ba@sof a UCL claim Perlas 187 Cal. App. 4th at 43@n any amended

complaint, Plaintiffs must state which prong of the UCL was violated by whiobnBaht

committingwhich alleged misconduct. Any allegations under the fraudulent prong must comply

with Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 9(yinally, Plaintiffs may not seek actual or punitive
damages in any amended claim under the B&tause the available remedies under the UCL ar|
limited to injunctive relief and restitutionKorea Supply Co. v. Lohckeed Martin CoZ9 Cal. 4th
1134, 1144-45 (2003).
F. Sixth Claim: Rescission Under Cal. Civ. Code § 1689(b)
Cal. Civ. Code 1689(b)(1) allowsscission of a contratitf the consent of the party
rescinding. . . was given by mistake, or obtained througtess, maeace, fraud, or undue

influence.”
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Plaintiffs allege that AmNé&s “failures to disclose critical loan terms . . . induced Plaintiff
consent to enter into the Subject Loan agreements by fraud.” SAC { 87. Thesdaildonthe
same reasongat Plaintiffs’ claims under the fraudulent prong of the UCL fail. That is, tffain
have failed to allegthe who, what, when, where, and how of the misconduct charged, as requ
for claims sounding in fraudSeeFed. R. Civ. P. 9(b).

Cal Civ. Code 8§ 1691 requires the rescinding party to “restore to the other party exgry!
of value which he has received from him under the contract or offer to restore thasam
condition that the other party do likewise, unless the latter is unable or positivsggéd do sb.
Thus, to state a valid claim for rescissiBhaintiffs “must at least allege thihey] hgve] offered
to tender to support a claim for equitable rescission under sectiori 158dDavenport v. Litton
Loan Servicing, LP725 F. Supp. 2d 862, 880 (N.D. Cal. 20KX&e alsd”eriguerra v. Meridas
Capital, Inc, 09-CV-4748-SBA, 2010 WL 395932, at *3 (N.D. Cal. Feb. 1, 2Q10nless and
until they properly allege a willingness to tender, Plaintiffs cannot seelsseon of the loan or
Deed of Trust). Plaintiffs have not done sd?laintiffs havetherefore not adequately pladclaim
for state law rescission.

Accordingly, Plaintiffs’ rescission claim under Cal. Civ. Code § 1688¢lajnst AmNets
DISMISSEDWITHOUT PREJUDICE Any anmended claim must comply with Federal Rule of
Civil Procedure 9 and alledkat Plaintiffshave offered to tender

G. Seventh Claim: RESPA

RESPA creates a private right of action for only three types of wroagtsil (1) payment
of a kickback and unearned fees for real estate settlement services, 12 U.S.C.)8 @907 n
requiring a buyer to use a title insurer selected by the seller, 12 U.S.C. § 2608((3)) the
failure by a loan servicer to give proper notice of a transfer of servights ior torespond to a
qualified written request for information about a loan, 12 U.S.C. § 260Béflague v. Wells
Fargo Bank, N.A.No. 10€V-03460-SBA, 2010 WL 4695480, at *3 (N.D. Cal. Nov.8, 2010).
Claims brought under § 2607 or 2608 are subject to yeaestatute of limitation, while claims
under 8 2605 are governed by a thyear statute of limitations, which commence to run when th

violation occurs. 12 U.S.C. § 2614.
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Without citing any specific statutory provision, Plairgitflleges that “Broker and Lenders”
violated RESPA by: (1) “at the time of closing the Subject Loan by ¢gibrproperly and
accurately comply with the disclosure requirements”; (2) “failing to infolamBffs of their intent
to transfer the servicing of the loan or to advisthefloan transfer within the requisite time
period”; (3) “fail[ing] to disclose all affiliated business arrangements to Plaintiffed;(d )
“fail[ing] to provide Plaintiffs with a HUDB1 statement at closing.” SAC { 96-98laintiffs
provide no other detail regarding what provisions of RESPA were violated or wibgt/AciNet
violated RESPA. Given the scant information provided, Plaintiff has failed to adbgalk¢ge
RESPA claims.

Moreover, even assuming these four allegations were properly ipdgdwould all fail to
state a claim upon which relief could be granted. Plaintiffs have failetbteedhe AmNet was a
loan servicer subject to liability under 12 U.S.C. 2605(f). Failure to disaloséfiliated business
arrangemenis not an independent cause of action in the absence of allegatiocisbaick and
referral fees.Washington v. NatCity Mortg. Co, 10-CV-5042-SBA, 2011 WL 1842836, at *8
(N.D. Cal. May 16, 2011). Finally, the obligation to provide a borrower with a Hilatement
arnses from 12 U.S.C. § 2603, which does not create a private right of abtartinez v. Wells
Fargo Home Mortgage, Inc598 F.3d 549, 557 (9th Cir. 2018ge alsaBloom v. Martin 865 F.
Supp. 1377, 1385 (N.OCal. 1994),affd, 77 F.3d 318 (9th Cir. 1996).

Moreover, the claim arising out of the failure to comply with the disclosurerezgents,
which accrued at closing, would be time-barred under the fl@@estatute of limitations as of
2009. Plaintiffs allege that their RESPA claim is subjecetmitable tolling given their pleading of
fraud in the fifteenth through seventeenth causes of acéienwith their TILA claims, however,
Plaintiffs do not allege any diligence treir part that might potentially extend the statute of
limitations throgh equitable tolling.Avila v. Countrywide Home Loans, Int0-CV-05485LHK,
2011 WL 1192999, at *3 (N.D. Cal. Mar. 29, 2011). Moreoaijntiffs makeno effort to tie
their allegations of fraud (which are, in any event, insufficient asmdlet, asdiscussed below) to

the alleged RESPA violations, or to explain why the alleged fraud made it itoledssthemto
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bring their RESPA claims timely.Powell v. GMAC Mortg. LLC09-CV-04928-LHK, 2010 WL
4502705, at *5 (N.D. Cal. Nov. 1, 2010).

Accordingly,Plaintiffs RESPA claim against AmNet is DISMISSED. Plaintiffs’ claims
arising out of Defendants’ alleged failure to “inform Plaintiffs of their interitansfer the
servicing of the loan or to advise of the loan transfer within the requisite tinoel’peray be
amended to cure thoeficiencies noted abovéll other claims under RESPA are DISMISSED
WITH PREJUDICE for the same reason that the Court dismidsa#iffs’ TILA claims with
prejudice.

H. Eighth Claim: Unconscionability Under Cal. Civ. Code 88 1670.5(a), 1770(s)

Plaintiffs allege that Borrower and Lenders’ failure to “disclose materialsteombined
with Lenders’ superior bargaining power at the time the Subject Loarragnts were made
render the Subject Loan agreements unconscionable.” [SK4. Plaintiffs further allege that the
“adjustable rate mortgage agreement between Plaintiffs and Broker anad_isnaleconscionable
and should not be enforced by the Court because Plaintiffs are informed and beliBvekéiat
and Lenders have eaged in predatory lending practices .. ..” SAC { 105.

As AmNetcorrecty point out, unconscionability under Cal. Civ. Code § 1670.5 is not an
affirmative claim, but merely a defense to the enforcement of a conkigot Nguyen v. Wells
Fargo Bank, N.A 749 F. Supp. 2d 1022, 1037 (N.D. Cal. 20tfi)ng Dean Witter Reynolds, Inc.
v. Superior Court211 Cal. App. 3d 758, 766 (1989)). Tdlaim isthereforewithout merit, and
amendment is futileAccordingly, Plaintiffs’ claims against AmNet for umtscionability are

DISMISSED WITH PREJUDICE.

I. Ninth & Tenth Claims: Breach of Contract and Implied Covenant of Good
Faith and Fair Dealing

Plaintiffs allege that “Broker and Lenders breached their agreement bygantier things,
failing to provide Plaitiffs with required disclosures.” SAC | 110.

A breach of contract claim requires tlagilaintiff plead facts establishing: “(1) existence o
the contract; (2) plaintit§ performance or excuse for nonperformance; (3) defendant’s breach;

(4) damageto plaintiff as a result of the breach&rmstrong Petroleum Corp. v. Thialley Oil &
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Gas Co, 116 Cal. App. 4th 1375, 1391 n.6 (2004) (citation omitted). Plaintiffs have not allege
the existence of any contract other than the loan agreerRémntiffs havenot alleged what
disclosuresAmNetwas contractually bound to make underltda agreemerdr that AmNet failed
to make any particular disclosure required by the loan agreemd@néover, Plaintiffsappear to
concede noiperformance without alleging that their aparformance was excuse8eeSAC
119-120 (“Defendants, beyond failing to cooperate with Plaintiffs’ performand¢eadtstended
for or anticipated Plaintiffs’ non-performance. Brokers and Lenders, in baddatered the
SubjectLoan in anticipation of non-performance and foreclosure.”). Thus, Plaintiffs hieab tia
state a contract claim.

California law recognizes that “every contract contains an implied covehgood faith
and fair dealing that neither party will do anything which will injure the right@ftther to receive
the benefits of the agreementVolf v. Walt Disney Pictures and Televisia62 Cal. App. 4th
1107, 1120 (CalCt. App. 2008). The scope of the implied covenant is “circumscribed by the
purposesnd express terms of the contra@gdrma Developers (Cal.), Inc. v. Marathon Dev. Cal.
Inc., 2 Cal. 4th 342 (1992), and it “cannot impose substantive duties or limits on the contractir]
parties beyond those incorporated in the specific tefrtfseir agreement.’/Agosta v. Astqrl20
Cal. App. 4th 596, 60T7Cal. Ct. App. 2004). Plaintiffs allege that “Broker and Lenders breached
the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing by: (1) “failing to disclogegkens, including
but not limted to the nature of the adjustable interest rate”; (2) “failing to reasonaljaéy
Plaintiffs’ ability to pay or perform”; and (3) “providing Plaintiffs the Suttjeoan with
knowledge of Plaintiffs’ inability to perform.” SAC § 118. This claimddor the same reason the
contract claim fails above. Plaintiffs have not alleged the existence of angatasitrer than the
loan agreement. Plaintiffs have mt&tecthat any of these allegeontractual duties were
incorporated into the specific terms of the loan agreement. Accordingly, fddnatve failed to
state a claim under the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.

Thus, Plaintiffs’ ninth and tenth claims agaiAstNet ae DISMISSED WITHOUT
PREJUDICE.

J. Twdfth Claim: Intentional Infliction of Emotional Distress
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The elements of a cause of action for intentional infliction of emotional disires(1)
extreme and outrageous conduct by the defendant with the intention of causing, os reckles
disregard for the probability of causing, @mnal distress; (2) the plaintiff suffering severe or
extreme emotional distress; and (3) actual and proximate causation of the endidtoess by the
defendant’s outrageous condu&ee Cervantez v. J.C. Penney,@d.Cal.3d 579, 593 (1979).
“For [c]onduct to be outrageous, [it] must be so extreme as to exceed all bounds of that usual
tolerated in a civilized community.Id.

Plaintiffs merely allege that Defendants “recklessly failed to evaRiaiatiffs’ ability to
repay the Subject Loamith an intention to profit from Plaintiffsdefault” and that “[9lch conduct
is extreme and outrageous.” SAC | 133. TRI&intiffs’ SAC includes no allegations as to
conduct specific to AmNemmaking it impossible to discern whether AmNeatduct vas so
extreme as to exceed all bounds tolerated in a civilized sodtetyhermorethe Notice of
Default, RIN Ex. B, which “unlawfully initiated ngnéicial foreclosure proceedings against
Plaintiffs, SAC { 35, was requested by Defendant Old RepuBlaintiffs have not alleged that
AmNet participated in the initiation of foreclosure proceedings. The initiaticoretlbsure
proceedingss whatallegedly resulted in Plaintiffs’ sustaining extreme emotional distress. SAQ
132. Thus, Plaintiffs havfailed to allege that AmNet proximately caused the emotional distres
resulting from the judicial foreclosuréccordingly, Plaintiffs have failed to state a claim of
intentional infliction of emotional distress against AmNet.

Furthermore, my cause oéction for intentional infliction of emotional distresgainst
AmNetis time-barred by the relevamivo-year statute of limitationsCal. Code Civ. Proc. § 335.1;
Pugliese v. Superior Coyrt46 Cal. App. 4th 1444, 1450 (Cal. Ct. App. 2007)claghm accrues
when the plaintiff knows or has reason to know of the injury which is the basis of the action.”
Maldonado v. Harris370 F.3d 945, 955 (9th Cir. 200Becausdélaintiffs’ intentional infliction
of emotional distresslaim againsAmNet arises out of AmNet’s conduct in evaluating the
Plaintiffs’ qualifications for the loan, the claim accrued in September 2006, and the statute of
limitations ran in September 2D0 Although Magistrate Judge Trumbull denied CMC'’s and

MERS’s joint motion to dismiss as to Plaintiffs’ intentional infliction of emotional distress claim
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the FAC, these Defendantmlike AmNet, were allegedly involved in the initiation of foreclosure
proceedings in May 2009, and therefore Magistrate Judge Trumbull was not prestémted w
statute of limitations issues presented here.

Accordingly,Plaintiffs have failed to state a claim of intentional infliction of emotional
distress against AmNet, and, even if they had, such a claim would bbameg- Thus,this claim
is DISMISSED. Moreovehecausélaintiffs have not alleged equitable tollirgspite having
three opportunities to do sBlaintiffs’ intentional infliction of emotional distress claim against

AmNet is DISMISSED WITH PREJUDICE

K. Thirteenth, Fourteenth & Fifteenth Claim: Intentional Misrepresentation,
Fraudulent Concealment, and Negligent Misrepresentation

Plaintiffs allege three fraud based claims: intentional misrepresentatiodyfieat
concealment, and negligent misrepresentatihof these claims are subject tive heighitened
pleading requiremengursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 9(gLeon v. Wells Fargo
Bank, N.A.10CV-01390-LHK, 2010 WL 428500, at *4 (N.D. Cal. Oct. 22, 20Rpbsal v. First
Fed. Bank of California671 F. Supp. 2d 1111, 1132 (N.D. Cal. 2009).

None ofPlaintiffs’ fraud basedlaimssatisfy the heightened pleading requirements of Rule
9(b). Plaintiffs merely state thaBroker and Lendersave made several representations to
Plaintiffs regarding material facts concerning the Subject lamahthe subject propertySAC
139, 159, withouallegingwhat the representations wetlaintiffs further allege that “Broker and
Lenders furthermore fraudulently and with intent concealed and omitted key @éthe Subject
Loan agreement, inclualgy but not limited to the nature of the adjustable interest rate.” JAC 1
139, 150. Although unclear, it appears tRtintiffs’ fraud-based failure to disclose claims are
premised on the same failure to disclose that forms the baBiaiofiffs’ invalid TILA and
RESPA claims.In all three of these fradidased claimslaintiffs have pled vague and conclusory
allegations againgtmNet without any information as téhe who, what, when, where, and how of
the misconduct chargedVess v. Cibaeigy Cop. USA 317 F.3d 1097, 1106 (9th Cir.2003).
Plaintiffs, for instance, did not plead with the requisite particularity the name Afihiet

employee who concealed material famtsnade several representatioinsAs such Plaintiffs have
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failed to sufficiently allege the circumstances constituting the alleged framaolecealment to
give AmNetadequate notice of the particular misconduct so it can defend against the SGeerge.
Fed. R. Civ. P. 9(b).

Second, teseclaims aretime-barred becaud@aintiffs commenced the instant action morg
than three years after signitigeir loan documents in September 200®e applicable statute of
limitations governing a fraud cause of action is Calde Civ. Proc. § 338(d), which provides a
three year statute of limations for bringing “an action on the ground of fraud or mistake.” Cal.
Code Civ. Proc. 8§ 338(dPlaintiffs have failed to allege equitable tollintgspite having three
opportunities to do stecause they have failed to allege that “despite all digerce’ they “were
unable to obtain vital information bearing on the existengtheir] claim.” Santa Maria v. Pac.
Bell, 202 F.3d 1170, 1178 (9th Cir. 2000).

Accordingly, Plaintiffs’ claims of intentional misrepresentation, fraudulent concealment,
andnegligent misrepresentation against AmaetDISMISSED WITH PREJUDICE.

L. Eighteenth & Nineteenth Claims. Negligence & Breach of Fiduciary Duty

To state a claim for negligencephintiff must plead that(a) defendant had a legal duty to
use due card€p) defendant breached that duty; aodtle breach was the proximate cause of the
resulting injury. Ladd v. Cty. of San Mate@?2 Cal. 4th 913, 917 (1996).

Plaintiffs’ negligence claim states only th&rbker and Lenders, knowirijaintiffs did
not have the financial means to ultimately make monthly payments in connection with tleetSub|
Loan, nevertheless offered the loan to Plaintiffs.” SAC § 185. Plaintiffs futtbge ahat Broker
and Lenders “further breached [their duty of care] by failing to disclosatotifk, as required by
federal law and state law, all adverse consequences of the Subject Loan, by securing
undisclosed profit for the sale and servicing of the Subject Loan in violation of SHAARESPA,
among other statutes, anddrygagirg in unfair business practices.” SAC | 185. Plaintiffs’ brea¢
of fiduciary duty claim tracks these allegatior@eSAC  193.

As a general rule, a financial institution owes no duty of care to a borrowsstinle
“actively participates in thBnanced enterprise beyond the domain of the usual money lender.”

Nymark v. Heart Fed. Savings & Loan As&281 Cal.App.3d 1089, 1096 (1991). Thus, if
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Plaintiffs wish to pursue a claim of negligenttegsymust allege sufficient facts to allow the Court
reasonably to infer th&mNet actively participated in origination of the loan beyond the domain
of the usual money lendePlaintiffs’ pleadings are insufficient to support such an inference, an
Plaintiffs SAC therefore fails to state a claim for negligence.

While California law imposes a fiduciary duty on mortgage brokers, no such duty is
imposed on lendersShepherd v. Am. Home Mortg. Servs.,,IN@. 2:09-1916 WBS GGH, 2009
WL 4505925, at *2 (E.DCal. 2009) (citingPrice v. Wells Fargo Bank13 Cal.App. 3d 465, 476,
(1989)). Thus, AmNet, as a lender, SAC 1 24, had no fiduciary duty to Plaintiffs. Therefore,
Plaintiffs claim for breach of fiduciary duty fails.

To the extent that Plaintiffs allege AmNet's duties arose out of TILA, RESRAhan
UCL, the Court ha already found that Plaintiffeave failed to state a claim under these statutes.
Any breach of duty arising out of these statutes similarly fails.

Given that AmNet is listed aslender on the deed of trust, RIN Ex. A, at 1, aathiffs
have alleged that AmNet was a lender, SAC { 24, the Court finds it impossible th@ff$la
would be able to cure the above defects in these claims. Accordingly, Plamggdfggence and
breach of fiduciary duty claims against AmNet are DISBED WITH PREJUDICE.

V. Conclusion

For the foregoing reasons, the Court GRANMSNet’'s motion to dismis8

Plaintiffs may amend their clainagainst AmNet under Cal. Civ. Code § 1916.7(b)(5), th¢
UCL, contract, and breach of the covenant of good faith and fair dealing, as edtabove. All
other claims against AmNare DISMISSED WITH PREJUDICEPIaintiff must file any
amended complaint within 21 days of this Order and may not add any new claims or pagss ulf

by stipulation of all Defendants.

8 On November 14, 2011, Plaintiffs filed a motion to strike portionsnoRet's reply. ECF No.
132. The motion to strike alleges that the allegations in AmNet's reply “are insufficiesupport
claims, Redundant, Immaterial, Impertinent and a SHAM PLEADING agaiasttift intended
to waste this Courts time and should be strickdd. at 2. Plaintiffs do not point the Court to any
portions of AmNet’s reply that fits this description. Moreover, the Court haswedi AmNet's
reply and finds that Plaintiffs’ allegations are baseless. AccordiRtdintiffs’ motion to strike is
DENIED.
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Plaintiffs filed this suit on February 16, 2010. Under Federal Rule of Civil Procé(je
Plaintiffs were required to have served all defendagtdune 16, 2010Plaintiffs have not yet
served Defendant GMAC Mortgage Corp. If Plaintiffs do not file procseotice of processn
GMAC Mortgage Corp. within 30 days of thisder, all claims against GMAC shall be dismissed

without prejudice for failure to prosecute.

IT ISSO ORDERED.

Dated:November 28, 2011 j‘g N" m\.
LUCY ™. KOH

United States District Judge
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